
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 16 January 2023.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Companies 
Committee  

     
 

 

Tuesday, 24 January 2023 at 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Hannah Westropp (Chairman) 
Councillor John Dawson (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Helen Crawford, Councillor Barry Dobson, Councillor Philip Knowles, 
Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley and Councillor Jill Thomas, Alliance SK Vacancy 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, via the  
SKDC Public-I Channel 

 

 

 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 10) 

4.   Updates from the previous meeting 
To consider updates on Actions agreed at the previous meeting. 
 

(Page 11) 

5.   East Midlands Building Consultancy (EMBC) update 
Report on the East Midlands Building Consultancy (EMBC) quarter 2 financial 
position. 
 

(Pages 13 - 17) 

6.   EnvironmentSK Ltd 
Report presenting an update for the Council owned company 
Environment SK Ltd for 2022/23.   
 
 
 

(Pages 19 - 21) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://southkesteven.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

7.   Exclusion of Press and Public 
Under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public 
may be excluded from the meeting during any listed items of business, on the 
grounds that if they were to be present, exempt information could be disclosed to 
them as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

 

8.   LeisureSK Ltd Business Plan and Appointment of Directors 
To present the audited accounts for 2021/2022 for LeisureSK Ltd and the 
company Business Plan for financial year 2023/24. 
 

(Pages 23 - 104) 

9.   Work Programme 2022-23 
 

(Page 105) 

10.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

 



 

Meeting of the 
Companies Committee 
 
Thursday, 1 December 2022,  
10.00 am  

 
 

Committee Members present 
 

Other Members present 

Councillor Hannah Westropp (Chairman) 
Councillor John Dawson (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Barry Dobson 
Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley 
Councillor Jill Thomas 
 

Councillor Phil Dilks 

Cabinet Members 
Councillor Kelham Cooke, Leader of the Council 
(InvestSK Director) 
Councillor Adam Stokes, Deputy Leader of the Council 
(Director of EnvironmentSK Ltd) 
Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for Housing and Property 
(Director of Gravitas Housing Ltd) 
 
Officers  
 
Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive 
Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer (Director of Gravitas Housing Ltd) 
Nicola McCoy-Brown, Director of Growth and Culture (Director of LeisureSK Ltd) 
Karen Whitfield, Assistant Director of Leisure and Culture 
Jon Hinde, Head of Economic Development 
Lucy Bonshor, Democratic Officer 
 

 
70. Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Crawford who was substituted 
by Councillor Johnson and Councillor Knowles who was substituted by Councillor 
Bisnauthsing. 

 
The AllianceSK vacancy on the Committee for this meeting was taken by Councillor 
Baxter. 

 
71. Disclosure of interests 

 
None disclosed. 

 
72. Minutes of the meeting held on 7 October 2022 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 7 October 2022 were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED. 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

73. Updates from the previous meeting 
 

The update requested at the previous meeting of the Committee in respect of 
InvestSK Ltd would be dealt with at agenda item 5. 

 
74. InvestSK Ltd - Presentation of Accounts 2021/2022 

 
The Leader of the Council and Chairman of InvestSK Limited presented the report 
which dealt with the final audited accounts of InvestSK Limited for the fiscal year 
2021/2022. The Audit Finding report and additional details requested by elected 
Members at the previous meeting of the Committee were appended or contained 
within the report. 
 
The accounts for InvestSK Limited for the financial year 2021/2022 were publicly 
available under the InvestSK Limited Companies House registration (11413907).  
The accounts had been audited externally by Duncan and Toplis.  The financial 
statements gave a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 
March 2022. They had been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practices and in accordance with the requirements 
of the Companies Act 2006. 
 
Successes and achievements of the company had been well documented with 
external funding of £11.77m being secured during the period September 2018 to 
March 2022.  This demonstrated a return on investment in external funding of £3.77 
leveraged for every £1 spent. 
 
A summary of lessons learnt had been asked for at the last meeting of the 
Committee and these were found at 1.12 of the report.  Members were asked to 
endorse the recommendation that the audited accounts were a true and accurate 
record of the expenditure incurred by InvestSK Ltd during the final operational year 
2021/22.  Tribute was made to the staff and officers of InvestSK Ltd for the work 
they had done and it was hoped that they would continue to secure investment as 
part of the Economic Development Team. 

 
The content of the report was praised by Members, specifically the lessons learnt 
and it was stated that the reasons given suggested that there were inherent 
disadvantages to setting up an arm’s length company. Going forward there had to 
be overwhelming evidence to support this route in the future.  Reference was made 
to the University Centre funding figure shown and an update requested and also 
whether the funding could have been secured by the Council rather than the arm’s 
length company and whether that would be a problem now that InvestSK was in 
house. 
 
The Leader of the Council and Chairman of InvestSK Limited thanked the Member 
for the comments made and stated that an honest discussion of the lessons learnt 
was necessary.  It was acknowledged that some of the processes had caused 
Member’s anxiety or frustration in the way that the company had worked.  When the 
company had been set up there had been opportunities in respect of economic 
regeneration which neighbouring authorities had also seen. 

 

4



 

In respect of the University Centre there were on-going discussions with the 
Enterprise Partnership and a revision in terms of the repayment of the grant.   Most 
funding now came from central Government and the in house Economic 
Development team would continue to bid and secure funding for the area. 
 
Further discussion on the content of the report and the original set up of the 
company followed with one Member expressing his views in respect of InvestSK 
Ltd. He felt that there were more than the seven lessons learnt listed within the 
report and he made comments in respect of both the difficulty in viewing the 
business plans of the company and also the staffing mechanisms. 
 
The Members views on the InvestSK Ltd were noted and it was stated that when 
the company had been put in place, the economic environment had been very 
different.  The business plan for the company had been refreshed and revised when 
the Member had become Leader and scrutiny was carried out by the Finance, 
Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee.   
 
A question was asked in respect of filing the papers at Companies House to strike 
off the company and whether the business plan template was the same for all the 
SK Ltd companies.  It was confirmed that as soon as the auditors filed the accounts 
at Companies House the company would be struck off and it was for the 
Companies Committee to decide if they wanted to amend or change the current 
business plan template used for the SK Ltd companies.  
 
➢ Action 

 
That the current business plan template used for the SK Ltd companies to be 
reviewed at a future meeting of the Committee. 
 
The recommendation within the report was proposed, seconded and AGREED. 
 
Decision 
 
That the Companies Committee notes the information provided within the 
audited accounts as a true and accurate record of the expenditure incurred 
by InvestSK Limited during the operational year 2021/22. 

 
75. LeisureSK Ltd Draft Accounts 2021-2022 and Consideration of a Management 

Fee for 2023-2024 
 

The Chairman reminded the Committee that if they wished to discuss the exempt 
papers attached to the report then the meeting would have to go into private 
session. 
 
At the October meeting of the Committee, Members were presented with the 
accounts for LeisureSK Ltd to March 2021.  The report before Members dealt with 
the draft financial accounts for LeisureSK Ltd up to 31 March 2022 and a request 
for the Committee to consider a management fee of up to £500,000 for the financial 
year 2023/24 from the Council.   

 

5



 

The report detailed the areas that LeisureSK Ltd were currently reviewing and this 
included the condition surveys as outlined within paragraphs 1.8 to 1.13 of the 
report and included guidance on the remedial work categorised into four groups: 

 

•  Works required which pose a health and safety risk or where items 
were at end of life 

• Works to resolve operational and building issues 

• Works which are affecting the income potential of LeisureSK Ltd, 
and therefore increasing the Council’s subsidy 

• Works which if undertaken now, would limit further costs in the 
future 

 
Paragraph 1.13 of the report detailed the works required and paragraph 1.14 
detailed the works to support the request for the management fee for 2023/24.  
Budget pressures included the two significant areas of expenditure for LeisureSK 
Ltd which were staffing and utility costs.  Reassurance was given that the Board of 
Directors were committed to exploring a range of opportunities to help mitigate the 
rising costs in respect of staffing and utilities.  The Committee were asked to agree 
the recommendations contained within the report. 
 
One Member asked why a business plan was not included.  The Assistant Director 
of Leisure and Culture replied that the business plan was agreed annually and the 
business plan for 2023/24 would come to the Committee in January 2023.   
Reference was made to the previous business plan which had contained Deepings 
Leisure Centre.  Following the decision that had been made at the recent Council 
meeting, it was felt that the current business plan was redundant and LeisureSK Ltd 
was not delivering what it had said it would.  It was also asked whether the Leader 
and Deputy Leader had resigned from the Board of Directors, because they no 
longer had confidence in the company. 
 
The Leader stated that Members needed to be clear about the difference between 
LeisureSK Ltd and the Council.  LeisureSK Ltd delivered the leisure services that 
the Council provided.  The Council had made a decision to no longer proceed with 
the refurbishment of the Deepings Leisure Centre.  Following legal advice, the 
Leader and the Deputy Leader had resigned from the Board of Directors for 
LeisureSK Ltd, so that there was no conflict of interest in the decision made by 
Council at its meeting on 24 November 2022.  
  
Further discussion followed in respect of the decision taken at Council, the 
resignation of two Directors and the current business plan for LeisureSK Ltd.   It 
was requested that an updated business plan for LeisureSK Ltd be added to the 
agenda for the next meeting of the Committee in January 2023, also a report on the 
appointment of new Board Directors to LeisureSK Ltd. 
 
➢ Action Note 
 
That an updated Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd be added to the agenda for 
the January meeting of the Companies Committee and a report on the 
appointment of new Board Directors. 

 

6



 

More discussion followed. 
 
One Member asked if it would be possible to have a list of the required work for the 
condition surveys for the three leisure centres, together with the costs and when the 
work would start?  

 
It was stated that structural reports would go to the Culture and Visitor Economy 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and reference was made to the planned 
improvements to the leisure facilities which included new gym equipment at Bourne 
Leisure Centre and the repairs to the wave machine at Stamford Leisure Centre. 
The plan of investments for the leisure centres would form part of the Council’s 
budget and the recommendation before Members was for a management fee up to 
£500,000.   
 
It was noted that leisure providers were struggling across the country and were 
facing higher costs. The Council was protected to some extent because 
LeisureSK Ltd had been set up to manage the leisure provision during the short to 
medium term.  It was hoped that once the leisure market stabilised, the Council 
would go back out into the market for an external supplier.  Tribute was made to the 
Officers and Members currently involved with LeisureSK Ltd. 

 
The Committee were informed that the condition survey reports were detailed 
documents and Officers from both leisure and property were currently categorising 
them.   Reference was made to the report that went to the recent meeting of 
Council detailing the level of investment in the leisure centres over the next 30 
years.  Progress had already been made with some items for example the boiler at 
Stamford Leisure Centre had been replaced.     
 
One Member made reference to the Stamford Leisure Centre wave machine which 
was over 20 years old and was felt used sparsely.  It was questioned whether it 
could be removed to extend the pool.  Unfortunately, this was not possible as 
removing the wave machine wouldn’t increase the pool capacity.  
 
Questions were asked about the improvements, identified savings and mitigations 
listed within the report, and as a result would the money requested be enough.  
One of the Directors of the company confirmed that they were confident about the 
amount of money requested.  
 
The Committee were informed that since the pandemic usage of leisure centres 
operated by Councils were not going above 80%.  It was anticipated that the 
marketing activity, the use of social media, offering more swim school spaces and 
the improvement of facilities would help to increase the usage of the centres. 

 
The Assistant Director of Leisure and Culture stated that it was currently a 
challenging time for all leisure operators and the additional request was to support 
the uplift in utility costs, however, there were no guarantees due to the 
unpredictability of the utility market. The Leader stated that the Local Government 
Association continued to lobby the government for funding for leisure, health and 
wellbeing across all party group leaders and councillors to try and secure more 
funding for leisure. 

 

7



 

A question was asked about the membership of the working group and the local 
action plan referenced at 2.3 of the report in respect of the Lincolnshire Districts 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy and how it fed into LeisureSK Ltd.  The Assistant 
Director of Leisure and Culture stated that the working group was for officers only 
and a draft of the strategy would be considered by the Rural and Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in December 2022 before going on to Cabinet for 
adoption. 
 
Concern was expressed about the timing of when information came before the 
Committee, information needed to be brought earlier. 
 
Further discussion followed in respect of strategies, active travel (such as cycling 
routes) and the content of the report and its relevance to LeisureSK Ltd.  A question 
was asked about having the relevant “checks and balances” in place and it was 
stated that there needed to be sufficient oversight and scrutiny of the Council 
owned companies going forward. 
 
The recommendations contained within the report were proposed, seconded and on 
being put to the vote AGREED. 
 
Decision 
 
That the Companies Committee recommends to Cabinet a budget allocation 
of up to £500,000 to support LeisureSK Ltd for the financial year 2023/24 and 
agrees to receive the audited accounts for the period up to 31 March 2022 at 
the January 2023 meeting of the Companies Committee. 

 
76. Gravitas Housing Ltd Project Update Report 

 
Members received a report from Gravitas Housing Ltd which provided a progress 
position in respect of the Wherry’s Lane, Bourne development. 
 
Before the report was presented one Member asked about why the report was not 
in the name of a Cabinet Member as with all the other reports received.  It was 
noted that the report was from the Directors of Gravitas Housing Ltd not a Cabinet 
Member. 
 
In presenting the report it was noted that that it could be the last report to the 
Committee, if the Committee recommended that the Company be dissolved. A brief 
background history of Gravitas Housing Ltd was given.  The company was the first 
arm’s length company of the Council and had been established in 2016 prior to the 
Companies Committee being formed.  
 
Only one scheme had been identified and was known as the Wherry’s Lane, 
Bourne Development.  It was adjacent to an existing development being undertaken 
under economic regeneration activity creating shops with living space above.   
 
The project was funded between the Council and the Company through an equity 
investment and loan structure.  Funding had been agreed in March 2017 and no 
additional funding had been agreed since that date.  Discussion on whether to 

8



 

progress the scheme had taken place and in 2019 it was agreed to proceed with 
the scheme using the original funding structure. 

 
Twenty-five housing units had been completed, 20 apartments and five town 
houses.  The units had been marketed right at the start of the Covid pandemic in 
March 2020.  Elements to the scheme included affordable housing which had been 
met through a significant 106 Agreement and also four help to buy properties which 
had an 80% of market price discounted price for first time buyers.   
 
The Committee had received previous reports on the progression of sales.  Due to 
the pandemic and the volatility of the market, the sale of the units had been 
protracted which had resulted in increased costs including empty property council 
tax fees, standing service charges and marketing expenditure.   
 
Indirect benefits to the Council had included the £173,000 interest charged on the 
loan to the Council and the New Homes Bonus in place during the creation of the 
units which had credited £188,000 to the Council.   
 
The total return on the investment was £672,000, however, expenses had 
significantly increased due to the duration of the project which had exceeded the 
original project timetable due to the pandemic and the unstable housing market 
which had resulted in a loss.  Reference within the report to Appendix B referred to 
the Meadow Lane, Bourne Housing Revenue Account (HRA) new build which had 
been previously to Committee. 

 
The recommendation before the Committee was to note the update on the Wherry’s 
Lane Bourne Development and to recommend to Cabinet that Gravitas Housing Ltd 
was dissolved upon the completion and auditing of the profit and loss account. 
 
It was noted that the expected profit margin for the development had only ever been 
very small at 5% which, due to unforeseen costs and fluctuations in the market had 
been lost. The project had been undertaken by Gravitas Housing Ltd originally, as 
developers looked for at least a 15% return on investment and the site would not 
have otherwise been developed. 
 
Discussion on the content of the report followed.  One Member made reference to 
the loss of money from the Company and also the Good Practice Local Authority 
Company Review Guidance which stated that “it is not considered good practice for 
a Section 151 officer to hold a position with a council owned entity”, it was felt that 
the Section 151 had a duty to promote the stability of the Council over anything 
else. 
 
Members who had originally been involved in the conception of the project 
expressed their views and the aspirations at that time for the Company. It was 
noted that other economic regeneration projects for Bourne had been in discussion 
at the same time as the inception of the Wherry’s Lane project.    
 
The project had been affected by difficulties with sales and viewing when the units 
had gone on the market due to the pandemic and also people’s ability to get finance 
during this period. 

 

9



 

It was stated that the funding agreed in 2017 should have been referred back to the 
Council because it constrained the finances of Gravitas Housing Ltd and any profit 
made.  Although the company had not delivered the financial outcome originally 
imagined, 25 families now had homes in Bourne. 
 
Further discussion followed on the losses incurred by the Company. A question was 
asked about the loss amount if the company was dissolved.  It was stated that 
although the company had made a profit of £750,000 after this profit was deducted 
from the equity figure of £1.1m this would represent a net loss of £440,000. 
 
A further question was asked about any snagging issues with properties if the 
company was dissolved.  It was confirmed that there was a protection warranty in 
place for a period of time. 
 
Members noted the update given in respect of the Wherry’s Lane, Bourne 
Development and it was proposed, seconded and AGREED to recommend to 
Cabinet that Gravitas Housing Ltd is dissolved upon the completion and auditing of 
the profit and loss account. 
 
Decision 
 
That Companies Committee recommends to Cabinet that Gravitas Housing 
Ltd is dissolved upon the completion and auditing of the profit and loss 
account. 

 
77. Work Programme 2022 - 2023 

 
The Chairman confirmed that the following items would be added to the Work 
Programme: 
 

• LeisureSK Ltd report appointing Board Directors – January 2023 

• LeisureSK Ltd report on an updated Business Plan – January 2023 

• Gravitas Housing Ltd report on the final accounts – March/April 2023 
 

78. Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 

 
None. 

 
79. Close of meeting 

 
The meeting closed at 11:50am. 

 
 

10



Action Sheet 

To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 1 December 2022 meeting of the Companies Committee. 
 

min 
no 

Agenda item Action(s) Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

74. InvestSK Ltd That the Companies 
Committee review the 
current business plan 
template used for SK Ltd 
companies at a future 
meeting of the Committee.  
 

Democratic 
Officer 

 To be included on Work Programme  
 
 

March 
meeting 

75. LeisureSK Ltd  That an updated Business 
Plan for LeisureSK Ltd be 
added to the agenda for the 
January meeting of the 
Companies Committee and a 
report on the appointment of 
new Board Directors. 
 

 

Assistant 
Director of 
Leisure and 
Culture 

Report included on the agenda for the 
January meeting of the Committee. 

24 January 
2023 

 

11

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Companies 
Committee 
 
 

24 January 2023 
 
Report of Councillor Nick Robins  
Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Planning Policy 
 
 

 

 

Updated financial position for East Midlands 

Building Consultancy, January 2023 
 

Report Author 

Emma Whittaker, Assistant Director of Planning 

  Emma.whittaker@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to support the Companies Committee in keeping oversight of 

the highly successful building control service for South Kesteven District Council, 

Rushcliffe Borough Council and Newark and Sherwood District Council. 

 

Recommendation 

 

1. To note the Quarter 2 performance (up to November 2022 i.e. periods 1-8) and 
provide any suggestions to support the ongoing partnership. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No. 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

• Growth and our economy 

• Housing that meets the needs of all residents 

• Healthy and strong communities 

• Clean and sustainable environment 

• High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 Table 3 detailed in paragraph 2.9 of this report provides the 2022/23 forecast outturn 

for income, which is currently expected to exceed the budget by £30k. 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of Finance 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Reviewed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy 

Monitoring Officer  

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  In order to bring forward the Corporate Plan 2020-2023, having effective 

partnerships is vital. Members last received an update on the East Midlands 

Building Consultancy (EMBC) partnership on 7 October 2022. 

 

2.2 Building Control is unique compared to many other services provided by the 

Council in that it competes for work against the market, principally other councils 

and [independent] approved inspectors (AI). The exception to this are the statutory 

functions which a local authority building control service has to provide (and cannot 

14



be undertaken by an AI) such as dealing with dangerous structures, applications 

relating to work for disabled facilities and emergency planning. Such work cannot 

be charged for and is typically referred to as ‘non fee earning’. The fee earning 

aspect relates to applications made to the Council for it to assess if the 

development meets the Building Regulations.  The Council is in direct competition 

with AI’s for this element of the workload.   

 

2.3 In April 2016, Newark and Sherwood District Council (N&SDC) entered into a 

partnership previously formed (in 2014) between South Kesteven and Rushcliffe 

Borough Council’s (RBC) to provide the respective authorities Building Control 

service. The East Midlands Building Consultancy (EMBC) partnership is delivered 

and hosted by South Kesteven District Council. The partnerships contracts have 

been extended ever since by Members on a rolling basis, subject to an annual 

review and an ability to exit subject to specific notice periods and defined actions. 

 

2.4 The original partnership objectives were to combine resources to improve 

resilience, depth of expertise, staff retention and to improve service performance 

in this highly regulated area of work.  The partnership is based on a shared service 

agreement, with South Kesteven District Council delivering the EMBC service on 

behalf of each partner. Each council shares any financial surplus or deficit equally, 

operating financially under one single trading account. A Partnership Board, 

comprising of senior officers from each partner authority has primary responsibility 

for overseeing the operational management and delivery of the joint building 

control partnership. 

 

2.5 The workload split between fee earning and non-fee earning activity is 

approximately 74/26 and is typical of a local authority building control service.  The 

non-fee earning work is a cost that must be borne by the Council and is charged 

to the general fund. 

2.6 Whilst fee earning work is paid for by the customer, the Council is still required to 

have regard to the overriding objective of ensuring that as far as possible, charges 

are set at a level which equate to the cost of providing the service.  This means 

the Council is not permitted to make a profit from the charges and cannot subsidise 

the statutory services from fee income.  

Performance 

2.7 Table 1 (to follow) has been updated since Members (since the October 2022 

Companies Committee meeting) with four more months of data.   

Table 1. Yearly Comparison of EMBC Applications Received  

 

  April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March  TOTAL 

2019/20 203 155 172 218 154 153 153 133 68 158 159 171 1,897 

2020/21 83 95 161 180 146 200 187 262 131 181 181 258 2,065 

2021/22 206 258 199 207 150 182 169 141 88 205 160 173 2,138 

2022/23 175 192 251 136 149 158 133 138      

15



2.8 As stated above, Local Authority Building Control (LABC) departments do not have 

a monopoly in relation to “fee-earning work”. Approved Inspectors (AIs) can 

compete for this work, and it is important the Council monitors the percentage of the 

market share to ensure that it remains competitive.  Table 2 provides the number of 

applications made directly to the Council and the Initial Notices (applications made 

directly to Approved Inspectors).  EMBC is currently maintaining its market share at 

50% (average year to date). 

Table 2. Number of Applications made to the Council and Approved Inspectors 

Building Control Partnership % of Fee Earning  Full Plan, Building Notice, Regularisation 
application numbers against Initial Notice application numbers 

Application Numbers  

  
Apr 
2022 

May 
2022 

Jun 
2022 

Jul 
2022 

Aug 
2022 

Sep 
2022 

Oct 
2022 

Nov 
2022 

Total Application Numbers 
LABC 175 192 251 136 149 158 133 138 

Total Initial Notices AI 182 262 282 123 122 103 130 125 

TOTAL APPS LABC & AI 357 454 533 259 271 261 263 263 

LABC Market Share % 49 42 47 53 55 61 51 52 

AI Market Share % 51 58 53 47 45 39 49 48 

 

2.9 Table 3 provides refreshed (since last reported in October 2022) details of income 

against budget forecast, compared to the previous years. This demonstrates a year-

on-year increase in income over the last three years.  This is linked to the increase 

in applications.  

Table 3.  Income Against Budget Over the Past 3 Years.  

 Total Income Budget 

2019/2020 £  642,969 £  614,900 

2020/2021 £  658,512 £  657,900 

2021/2022 £  690,145 £  650,000 

2022/2023 (current 
Year to Date forecast)* 

£701,500 £671,500 

*These figures represent the current full year forecast based on income received at the end of period 

8 (30th November 2022) and is subject to usual budget monitoring for the remainder of the year.   

 

Business Plan 

2.10 The draft Business Plan, brought before this Committee at its October 2022 

meeting, will be reviewed by the EMBC Board on 8 March 2023. 

 

 Resources 

2.11 Interim management arrangements have been in place for over five years.  There 

is currently a recruitment exercise underway to recruit a permanent Building Control 

Manager to lead EMBC. It is likely interim arrangements will need to be extended 

until such point as a suitably qualified applicant, with strong technical knowledge 

and proven ability to lead a Building Control team, is appointed.     

16



3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 The partnership is a significant success and performance remains extremely stable. 

The service provides value for money for all stakeholders. However, it is important 

to review performance and to ensure the service is competitive and able to maintain 

its market share.   

  

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 Any additional recommendations to support the ongoing partnership are welcomed 

within the preferred option.  

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 To support the ongoing success of the EMBC Partnership. 

 

6. Background Papers 
 

6.1 East Midlands Building Consultancy, Report to Companies Committee, published 7 

October 2022, available online at:  

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35790/East%20Midlands%20

Building%20Consultancy%20Update.pdf 

 

7. Appendices 
 

7.1 None  

 

 

17

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35790/East%20Midlands%20Building%20Consultancy%20Update.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35790/East%20Midlands%20Building%20Consultancy%20Update.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Companies 
Committee 
 
 

24 January 2023 
 
Report of Adam Stokes (Environment 
SK Ltd Chairman) 
 
 

 

 

Environment SK Ltd 
 

Report Author 

Claire Moses, Director of Environment SK Ltd 

  01476 406484 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

This report presents an update for the Council owned company Environment SK Ltd for 
2022/23.   
 

Recommendations 

 

Companies Committee is requested to: 

1. Notes the financial position for 2022/23. 

2. Approve the appointment of Alison Hall-Wright as Director for 
Environment SK Ltd with immediate effect. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities? 

Clean and sustainable environment 

 

Which wards are impacted? All 

 

1.       Background to the Report 
 

1.1  Environment SK Ltd are providing an update to Companies Committee with 

regards to their financial position for 2022/23 and various activity impacting on 

the planning for 2023/24. 

 

2.       Current position of Environment SK Ltd 

 

2.3 The position as detailed at the meeting of this Committee on 7 October 2022 

remains largely unchanged.   

2.4 In normal circumstances Environment SK Ltd would be reviewing its business 

plan which would then be shared with Companies Committee for consideration 

(the last annual update was provided in June 2021).   

2.5 Since November 2021, the Council has undertaken a review in order to develop 

a revised, updated grounds maintenance specification.  At the time of writing this 

report there is currently uncertainty of the future of the company and 

Environment SK Ltd is awaiting instruction from South Kesteven District Council 

before it can submit a 2023/24 business plan. 

2.6 Environment SK Ltd is still experiencing inflationary cost pressures linked to fuel, 

utilities and other prices that are impacting on the Councils’ grounds 

maintenance service.  Additionally, Environment SK Ltd are also managing the 

uncertainties expected during quarter 4 relating to weather conditions and 

staffing resource.  The company is confident these pressures can be 

accommodated without any recourse back to the Council. 

2.7 Environment SK Ltd expect to be in a balanced financial position for 2022/23. 

 

3.       Budget for 2023/24 

 

3.1 The budget for Environment SK Ltd for 2023/24 remains unchanged from 

2022/23.  As a result of this, Environment SK Ltd will be closely monitoring the 

financial position throughout the year on a monthly basis. An unchanged budget 

could result in Environment SK Ltd needing to seek additional resource from the 

Council or reducing the specification worked to in year. 

20



4. Appointment of Directors 

 

4.1 Due to the long term absence of one of Environment SK Ltd’s Director, it has 

been proposed by the existing Directors for Environment SK Ltd that Alison Hall-

Wright, Assistant Director of Finance for South Kesteven District Council be 

appointed to the Environment SK Ltd Board of Directors. 

 

5. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 There are no decisions required – Committee are asked to note this report.  

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 There are no other options to be considered – Committee are asked to note this 

report. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 Committee are asked to note this report. 

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 No consultation has taken place. 

 

7. Background Papers 
 

7.1 There are no background papers. 

 

8. Appendices 
 

8.1 There are no appendices. 

 

 

 

21



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Companies 
Committee 
 
 

24 January 2023 
 
Report of Nicola McCoy-Brown, 
Chairman of LeisureSK Ltd 
 
 

 

 

LeisureSK Ltd Business Plan, Accounts and 

Appointment of Directors  
 

Report Author 

Karen Whitfield, Assistant Director – Culture and Leisure 

  Karen.whitfield@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To present the audited accounts for 2021/2022 for LeisureSK Ltd and the company 

Business Plan for financial year 2023/24.  Furthermore, it is requested the Committee 

consider the appointment of Directors to LeisureSK Ltd. 

 

Recommendations 

In noting the audited accounts for LeisureSK Ltd for 2021/2022, Companies 
Committee is requested to:  

1. Approve the Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd to cover the period April 2023 to    
March 2024. 

2. Approve the appointment of Councillor Paul Wood and Councillor Helen 
Crawford as Directors for LeisureSK Ltd with immediate effect. 

 

 

 

 

23

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

Appendix B to the Business Plan is not for 
publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

 
 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Growth and our economy 

Healthy and strong communities 

 

Which wards are impacted? Two or more Wards 

 

1. Background to the Report 
 
1.1  The South Kesteven Corporate Plan (2020-2023) contains a key priority of building 

‘Healthy and Strong Communities’. To underpin this priority the Council has an 
ambition to provide sustainable leisure facilities which support the health and 
wellbeing of our local communities, tackling inequalities and adding local economic 
and social value.  

 
1.2 LeisureSK Ltd is a not for profit Teckal company, wholly-owned by South Kesteven 

District Council.  The company was formed in September 2020 to take over the 
management of the Council owned leisure facilities within South Kesteven, this 
arrangement commencing from 1 January 2021.  

 
 LeisureSK Ltd – Final Accounts for 2020/2021 
 
1.3 At a meeting of Companies Committee held on 1 December 2022, a report was 

presented which provided detail on the draft accounts for LeisureSK Ltd up to March 
2022, the Committee agreeing to receive the audited accounts at a future meeting.   

 
1.4 A copy of the final audited accounts for 2021/2022 are included at Appendix One 

to this report, these having been considered and approved by the Board of Directors 
at the Annual General Meeting of LeisureSK Ltd held on 10 January 2023.   

 
 LeisureSK Ltd Business Plan 2023/24 
 
1.5 The Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd to cover the financial year 2023/2024 is 

attached at Appendix Two to this report.  The Business Plan has been developed 
by the Contract Manager for LeisureSK Ltd in collaboration with the Board of 
Directors. 

 
 Appointment of Directors 
 
1.6 Following the resignation of three Directors of LeisureSK Ltd, Karen Bradford, 

Nicola McCoy-Brown and David Monkhouse (Non-Executive Director) have 

24



remained on the Board and continue to oversee the operational and financial 
performance of the company. 

 
1.7 Board meetings and decisions made have been quorate as the company Articles of 

Association for LeisureSK Ltd state: 
 

‘the quorum for the transaction of business of the Directors shall be two Directors.  
If the total number of Directors for the time being in less than the quorum required, 
the Directors much not take any decision other than a decision to call a general 
meeting so as to enable the Owner to appoint further Directors.’ 
 

1.8 At a meeting of the Board of Directors for LeisureSK Ltd held on 10 January 2023, 
it was proposed the following be appointed to the LeisureSK Ltd Board of Directors: 

 
- Councillor Paul Wood 

 
- Councillor Helen Crawford 

 

2. Key Considerations 

 
2.1 As detailed in the report presented to Companies Committee on 1 December 2022, 

the financial and operational position for LeisureSK Ltd will remain challenging 

during financial year 2023/2024. 

 

2.2 As a result of increasing operational costs, the majority of which relate to higher 

utility prices, a budget allocation of up to £500,000 to support LeisureSK Ltd for the 

financial year 2023/2024 was recommended by Companies Committee at the 

meeting held on 1 December 2022.  As reported to the Budget Joint Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee on 9 January 2023, this amount has subsequently been built 

into the Councils budget proposals for 2023/2024. 

 

2.3 The Business Plan produced for LeisureSK Ltd recognises the operational and 

financial challenges for the year ahead, as well as acknowledging the wider benefits 

of the provision of leisure across South Kesteven.  This will be used as the basis for 

setting the direction and monitoring the performance of the company during 

financial year 2023/2024. 

 

3. Other Options Considered 
 

3.1   As a private limited company, LeisureSK Ltd is obligated to compile financial 
accounts on an annual basis and file these with Companies House. 

 
3.2 Companies Committee have previously agreed to receive the final audited accounts 

for LeisureSK Ltd for 2021/2022 and to consider the Business Plan for 2023/2024.  
 
 
 
 

25



4. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

4.1 The recommendations within this report will provide a framework to support the 
successful operation of LeisureSK Ltd during 2023/2024.  

 

5. Background Papers 
 
5.1 Budget Proposals for 2023/24 and Indicative budgets for 2024/25 and 2025/26 – 

Report to Budget - Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee, published on 9 January 
2023, available online at:  
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s36522/Budget%20Proposals
%20for%20202324.pdf 

 
5.2 LeisureSK Ltd Draft Accounts for 2021/2022 and consideration of a Management 

Fee for 2023/2024 – Report to Companies Committee published 1 December 2022, 
available online at: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s36255/LeisureSK%20Ltd%20
-%20Accounts.pdf 

 

6. Appendices 
 

6.1 Appendix One – Final Audited Accounts for LeisureSK Ltd for the period April 
2021 to March 2022. 

 
6.2 Appendix Two – Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd for financial year 2023/24. 
 

 

 

26

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s36522/Budget%20Proposals%20for%20202324.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s36522/Budget%20Proposals%20for%20202324.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s36255/LeisureSK%20Ltd%20-%20Accounts.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s36255/LeisureSK%20Ltd%20-%20Accounts.pdf


27

Appendix 1



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LeisureSK Limited 
Business Plan 2023/24 

37

Appendix 2



 

1. Executive Summary 
2. Mission, Vision and Values 
3. The Facilities 
4. Achievements 2022/23 
5. SKDC 
6. Critical Success Factors 
7. Business Objectives 
8. Service Improvements 
9. Marketing 
10. Demographics 
11. SWOT Analysis 
12. Products and Services 
13. Objectives and Strategy 
14. Finance 
15. Contract Structure & Responsibilities 
16. Challenges 
17. Research Plan

38



 

 

 

 

LeisureSK Ltd was established in September 2020 to take over the management of the 

Council’s leisure facilities on the expiry of the previous leisure contract with Leisure in the 

Community Ltd (trading as 1Life) on the 1 January 2021. 

LeisureSK Ltd is a Teckal company and is wholly-owned by South Kesteven District Council. 

Its primary role is to provide high quality leisure opportunities across the district to support 

the Council’s strategic aim to the “the best district to work, live and visit”.  

The management of the leisure centres is covered under a contract arrangement between 

South Kesteven District Council and LeisureSK Ltd.  The contract term is for an initial two years 

from the 1st January 2021, with the option to extend for a maximum further three years. 

The success of the company is assessed by a number of outcomes: 

• Providing increased access for South Kesteven residents of all backgrounds to leisure 

facilities; 

• Reducing social isolation; 

• Improving the emotional and physical health of residents; 

• Providing a sustainable leisure service. 

The Board of Directors of LeisureSK Ltd will be responsible for the operation and 

performance of LeisureSK Ltd.  The Council’s Assistant Director for Leisure and Culture, 

supported by the Leisure Team, will act at the Council’s representative, undertaking a 

robust contract monitoring role and ensuring that the objectives of the contract and the 

key performance indicators are achieved. The Council’s Companies Committee will 

continue to receive six monthly updates on the performance of LeisureSK Ltd and agree 

the annual business plan.  The Council’s Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee also receive six monthly updates on the company’s performance 

against the contract key performance indicators. 

The Council’s leisure facilities providing a range of memberships and pay-as-you go for 

leisure activities both for individuals and sports clubs and organisations.  These centres 

are an important Council asset in keeping the residents of South Kesteven active and 

healthy. 

LeisureSK Ltd supports the Council’s Corporate objectives by: 

• Providing high quality leisure facilities across the district 

• Working effectively with partners in the voluntary, private and public sectors for the 

benefit of local communities 

• Being an active delivery partner of the Council’s Sports and Physical Activity Strategy 

which was adopted in December 2021. 

LeisureSK Ltd has set a number of strategic goals and objectives to underpin the delivery 

of the Council’s objectives as follows: 

Section 1.0 – Executive Summary 

39



 

• To identify and breakdown barriers to accessing the leisure facilities in South 

Kesteven 

• To connect communities, looking at outreach programmes outside of traditional 

leisure facilities 

• To reduce social isolation and promote independent living in South Kesteven 

• To improve the physical and mental health of residents through targeted healthy 

lifestyle programmes 

• To facilitate and support the future of Council owned leisure and cultural facilities in 

South Kesteven 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

40



 

 

 

 
Mission 
 
“To provide a physical activity and wellness network for our community, promoting healthy 
lifestyles, supporting wellbeing and inspiring everyone to live a more active life.” 
 

Vision  

 

“Incorporating physical activity into everyday life, reaching more people, and making a 

difference to our community.” 

 

Values 

 

LeisureSK: 

Encourages healthy lifestyles 

Inspires physical activity 

Supports wellbeing 

Unites communities 

Respects differences 

Empowers people 

Safe and professional 

Knowledgeable 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 2.0 – Mission, Vision and Values 

41



 

 

 

Physical Details of the Sites -:  

Grantham Meres Leisure Centre and Football Stadium – Trent Road, Grantham 

 

 

 

• The original Table Tennis Centre was built in 1991 

• The leisure Centre extension was added 1998 

• This is the largest and newest facility in the Council’s leisure portfolio 

• The facility is owned by SKDC, as is the neighbouring Football Stadium 

• Annual usage in 2022 was 400,393 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 3.0 – The Facilities 

42



 

Bourne Leisure Centre – Queen’s Road, Bourne 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Built in 1988 

• The facility owned by Lincolnshire County Council and leased to Bourne Academy 

• Used by SKDC under a Chance to Share Agreement 

• Bourne Academy have priority of the sports hall daytime only, this is open to the 

community for evenings and weekends 

• The remainder of the leisure centre is fully available for community use 

• Annual usage 2022 was 147,980 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

43



 

Stamford Leisure Pool – Drift Road, Stamford 

 

 

 

• Built in 1986 

• The facility is owned by SKDC 

• It is predominantly a leisure pool with small gym facility 

• Annual usage in 2022 was 73,868 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

44



 

Operations 

 
The operation of the facility is governed by 2 key drivers, 

 
▪ The contract with SKDC, this outlines the expectations of both parties, as well as the key 

performance indicators (KPI’s). 
▪ LeisureSK Normal Operating Procedures, Emergency Action Plans and Quality 

Management Systems – These indicate more specifically how levels of service are to be 
achieved, and how each area of the service should be delivered. 

 
There are many other secondary drivers to the service delivery such as Government priorities 
including obesity and type 2 diabetes, smoking cessation and mental health to name a few. 
Other secondary drivers include local sports clubs, local trends and pressure groups, 
benchmarking results, Sports Development plan, competition and local area agendas. 

 
All day to day operational procedures and emergency procedures are covered in the Normal 
Operating Procedures (NOP). This document is issued to all new staff during their induction 
process, and ongoing training and competency assessments are undertaken with key staff 
who need to implement the contents of the documents.

45



 

 

 

 
• Wellbeing walks launched from all centres 

• Warm spaces offered at all centres 

• Pre and Post natal classes launched in Bourne and Stamford 

• Staff benefits package reviewed and improved 

• Swim school scheme increased by 17.7% (April 22-Jan 23) 

• Bourne gym refurbished with state-of-the-art equipment 

• Management Development programme launched with The HR Branch 

• Exercise on Prescription scheme delivered at all centres 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 4.0 – Achievement and Developments 2022-23 

46



 

 

 

5.0 South Kesteven District Council 

 
 LeisureSK Ltd and SKDC’s relationship has continued to evolve, develop and enhance, with 

dedication from both parties to work together to achieve excellent results for LeisureSK. 
Regular meetings are held with SKDC’s leisure team as well as support from finance, IT and 
property services when needed.  

 
 The key benefit of Partnership working is to look forward at developments and 

improvements. It will assist LeisureSK in achieving its mission and goals, and assist SKDC in 
providing a high quality of service which is sustainable.  

 
 Over the last 12 months and moving into 2023/24 LeisureSK and SKDC will continue to 

work together on projects including: 
               

Building Conditions surveys for all sites and how this will inform ongoing 
investment and bidding for external funding 
 
South Kesteven District Council have commissioned full building condition surveys across all 
three leisure centres and the football stadium, which also include a full survey of the 
Mechanical and Electrical Installation and the Pool Filtration systems. Following on from 
these condition surveys both the Councils Property and Leisure Officers have been working 
alongside LeisureSK to identify remedial works required and to plan for ongoing maintenance 
and investment. In addition to this LeisureSK are working with their energy bureau provider 
to identify energy saving efficiencies which can be made in the centres as part of ongoing 
investment. 
 
Links to the County wide Health and Wellbeing Strategy: 
 
District Councils are set to play an active role within the emerging Integrated Care Boards as 
it has been acknowledged that they are well placed in the system to influence and effectively 
work with partners to deliver sustainable change.  South Kesteven District Council, along 
with the other six district Councils in Lincolnshire has worked collaboratively to develop a 
Lincolnshire Districts Health and Wellbeing Strategy which is due for adoption in March 
2023.  The Strategy focuses on five priority areas where district councils can have the most 
impact including: 
 
• Housing and Homelessness 

• Activity and Wellbeing 

• Environment and Climate 

• Economic Inclusion 

• Community Engagement. 

As the Council’s key delivery partner for activity and wellbeing, LeisureSK Ltd will support 
South Kesteven District Council in achieving the aims of the Districts Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy including helping to reduce inactivity levels across the district, and ensuring that 
there are opportunities for all residents to be active both inside and outside of a traditional 
leisure setting. 

 
 
 

Section 5.0 – South Kesteven District Council (SKDC) 

47



 

Links to the Council's work on the refreshed Corporate Plan: 
 
South Kesteven District Council’s current Corporate Plan includes a key priority of ‘Healthy 
and Strong Communities’.  LeisureSK Ltd contribute to achieving this aim by providing a wide 
range of activities in the leisure facilities across the district and by supporting the Council in 
the delivery of its Sport and Physical Activity Strategy. 
 
As the current Corporate Plan for South Kesteven District Council expires in 2023, LeisureSK 
Ltd are fully committed to work with the Council as its develops it’s future aspirations for a 
refreshed Corporate Plan, ensuring that our Corporate and organisational aims are aligned. 
 
Input into the UKSPF and how this will maximise programmes and place shaping: 
 
South Kesteven District Council has received £3.9 million of funding from the UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund and has identified a range of improvements and interventions which 
complement its vision to be the ‘Best district in which to work, live and visit’.  LeisureSK Ltd 
will work actively with the Council to help deliver any identified schemes and programmes of 
work.  Early plans include ‘Get SK Moving’ Events across the four market towns in South 
Kesteven where LeisureSK Ltd will support the Council by promoting the positive impacts of 
physical activity and be providing health checks. 
 
Links with the development proposals for the stadium 
 
South Kesteven District Council have set aside some of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund to 
undertake a feasibility study to look at the potential re-modelling of Grantham Meres Leisure 
Centre and the Stadium to establish a community hub, including the co-location of 
services.  The aim is to have a bid ready, backed by robust community consultation, so that 
the Council are best placed to apply for any future levelling up funding which is 
available.  LeisureSK Ltd will be an active partner in the feasibility study work and 
consultation to ensure the proposals meet with community need and align to the Council and 
LeisureSK Ltd’s organisational aims. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48



 

 

 

• Effective Financial Control – 

o The General Managers have overall responsibility of finances on site. They can approve 

expenditure limits for other senior staff, have overall responsibility for signing off invoices, 

raising orders, and reimbursing staff expenses. 

o The system used for purchase orders is Sage. 

o Financial audits are completed annually.  

o The budgets are reported on a monthly basis to the LeisureSK Board. 

o The site budget is developed by the LeisureSK management team. This is then finalised and 

reported to the LeisureSK Board for approval. This forms the financial section of the business 

plan and is a key driver for all other operations. 

o Finances are continually reviewed and forecasted ahead with known variances highlighted 

and indications into the next financial year. 

o A full copy of the draft financial budget for 2023-24 is included in this Business Plan. 
 

• Service Quality and Improvement 

o LeisureSK uses a number of performance indicators to assess and evaluate the performance 

of the facility. From these indicators, action plans are devised and followed.  

 
 

• Health and Safety Management 

o Each member of staff has a H&S induction before commencing their duties, this covers the 

basic H&S information they need, information on the chemicals they will be in contact with, 

evacuation procedures, and reporting mechanisms. 

o LeisureSK has an adopted Health & Safety Policy. This is updated annually, and all staff 

receive a copy of this upon employment. A copy is also made available in the staff room. 

o The site consults with its employees regularly through a health and safety meeting chaired 

by the board member responsible for health and safety. This meeting has representation 

from each centre and they are encouraged to raise any health and safety issues or concerns. 

Any issues raised at this meeting are then discussed at management meetings and actioned 

where appropriate. 

o The Contract Manager is qualified through the Institute of Occupational Health and Safety 

and has overall responsibility for health and safety across the sites. H&S forms an integral 

part of all meetings, and is a standard item on every agenda and is imbedded as part of the 

culture of LeisureSK. 

o Site Normal Operating Procedures (NOP), Emergency Action Plans (EAP) and Risk 

Section 6 - Critical Success Factors 

49



 

Assessments are regularly reviewed in line with any business changes, new or updated 

legislation or following an accident or incident.   

 

 
• Cleaning and Housekeeping - 

o Facility standards regarding site presentation and cleanliness are very high. A sense of pride 

and ownership is felt within the team and also within many of the customers to have a well 

presented facility. 

o All sites have a comprehensive cleaning schedule, covering all areas of the facility.  Once a 

task is completed the member of staff will sign the job off. It is then the responsibility of the 

Duty Manager to check and countersign that the work has been completed to the required 

standard. This ensures the facility is presented at a high standard at all times.  

o The Duty Managers check that cleaning is at an acceptable level each day and highlight 

areas for improvement. 

o Regular monitoring visits are completed by SKDC’s Leisure Client Team to monitor required 

standards are ensure these are being met. 

 

 
• Staff Training and Development - 

o Staff training and development is one of the fundamental pillars of the business. LeisureSK 

has a training plan and training budget to support service delivery and achievement of 

LeisureSK’s key objectives. 

o Staff Performance Management Reviews (PMRs) are key in defining an individual’s training 

needs, and these are carried out annually with all staff. 

o Swimming teachers are expected to attend one Continuous Professional Development course 

per annum, which are fully funded by LeisureSK. 

o Any change in the business plan or additional programming will require a change to the 

training plan for staff and individual need are also assessed on an ongoing basis with regular 

reviews of competency taking place. 

o LeisureSK has linked with some external training providers such as Lifetime Training to offer 

courses in fitness, sales, management and customer service. 

o LeisureSK works closely with Swim England to deliver Swim Teacher courses. 

o LeisureSK has developed a Management Development Programme in partnership with The 

HR Branch, this program will ensure all managers skills are developed to succeed within 

LeisureSK. 

 

 

 

50



 

• Effective Management and Communication – 

 
o Communication between staff on site is effective due to the range of tools used to 

communicate to all staff. 

▪ Staff meetings – All centre’s have a management meeting every month. Departments meet 

regularly and a full team meeting is held at each site every 6 months. 

▪ E-mail – every member of staff who accesses a PC has an e-mail account; this is an effective 

method of getting direct messages to one person or targeting a wide audience with the 

same message. 

▪ Noticeboards – Staff are kept updated on issues, and company policies/performance by 

noticeboards. 

▪ SK Link – this can be used to message all staff including those not on LeisureSK emails. 

 
• Marketing and Research - 

o The key Marketing activity that we will be concentrating on this year will be based around 

our membership sales activity, and target groups. We are 

identifying groups and locations which are currently under represented in the facility, and will 

specifically target these areas. 

o We will use local events to market our facility and programme, and will sponsor local events, 

and offer prizes to local charitable events or competitions. 

o Outreach will be carried out monthly, and this will be a varied mix of door to door, leaflet 

drops, market stalls, street questionnaires, and involvement in local sporting events. 

o Research – both user and non-user will be carried out in a number of methods. 

▪ Customer satisfaction surveys 

▪ Linking to National and Local Government research 

▪ Non user surveys within the town 

▪ Exit surveys on cancelling members 

▪ Post use questionnaires 

o This information will be correlated and used to form action plans. 
 

• Equipment – 

 
o Although the equipment on site is of a good standard, we will always look to introduce new 

equipment to facilitate new sessions and create additional income. This will be looked at 

following meetings with SKDC, customer consultation i.e National Benchmarking Service, or 

local requirements identified elsewhere. 

 

 

51



 

• Consultation and Customer Feedback – 

o The sites will consult with customers through forums, meet the manager dates and customer 

feedback forms. 

o The sites will complete and annual customer satisfaction survey. 

o All LeisureSK sites upload data to the national Moving Communities database 

o Feedback from customers is analysed by site and key information is produced and reviewed. 

o The customer feedback is also discussed at management meetings. 

o Any key issues raised or continuing issues will be discussed by management and action plans 

put in place. 

o A new Site Research Planner has been developed and will improve on providing regular, 

ongoing and programmed research from a number of sources. 

o The Centre regularly uses mystery shoppers to measure the customer service. From this 

each site then produces an action plan to improve the customer service offering which is 

discussed at both a site level and included within the contract management monthly 

meetings. Feedback around the mystery visit process is also shared with SKDC’s Leisure 

Client team during the monitoring meetings. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52



 

 

 

• Short Term – 12 months 

o Improve the energy efficiency of centre’s to reduce utility costs 

o Grow fitness membership to 3,191 

o Grow swim school to 3,775 

o Launch specialist intervention classes across the contract - Cancer rehabilitation, Stroke 

rehabilitation, falls prevention, Cardiac rehabilitation 

o Deliver health services at Grantham including smoking cessation and weight management 

o Enroll all managers onto recognised management qualification 

 

 
• Medium Term -1-3 years 

o Establish LeisureSK as a profit-making company 

o Create Healthy Hubs at Grantham and Bourne 

 
• Long Term –over 3 years 

o Establish LeisureSK as one of the leading Local Authority Trading Companies in the country 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 7 – Business Objectives 

53



 

 

 

How service improvements will be identified – 

 
• Service improvements and continuous improvement will form a key part of the 

future development of LeisureSK. There will be a number of methods used to 

identify possible improvements, and these are listed below. 

• Staff consultation and feedback 

• Customer feedback and user forums 

• Club forums 

• Liaising with SKDC 

• Liaising with Active Lincolnshire 

• Quality Audits 

• Mystery shopper information carried out locally on site 

• The improvements will be achieved by feeding the information gathered in the 

above method into action plans.  

• LeisureSK is signed up to Quest which is Sport England’s recommended 

Continuous Improvement Tool for leisure facilities and sports development teams, 

designed to measure how effective organisations are at providing customer 

service. Established for over 20 years it is supported by Sport England as well as 

organisations like CIMSPA, ukactive, Chief Leisure Officers’ Association and 

SPORTA. As part of the Quest assessment all the centre’s will receive a mystery 

visit and then have the option of either a 1 day Quest assessment or a 2 day 

Quest Plus assessment. As part of both assessments there are 6 core modules 

which are included including compliance declaration, operational management, 

environmental management, managing the team, customer journey and tackling 

inequalities. Following on from the overall assessment the centre’s are given a 

banding of either Unsatisfactory, Satisfactory, Good, Very Good or Excellent. 

Should the centre undertake Quest Plus there is an additional banding of 

Outstanding. 

• All these action plans will be the responsibility of the centre management teams 

which will allocate all key tasks to a specific staff member along with deadline 

dates, and expected outcomes. 

 

 

  

Section 8 - Service Improvements 

54



 

 

 

A full copy of the marketing strategy can be found in Appendix A 
 

 

Section 9 – Marketing 

55



 

 

 

In South Kesteven, the population size has increased by 7.2%, from around 133,800 in 2011 
to 143,400 in 2021. This is higher than the overall increase for England (6.6%), where the 
population grew by nearly 3.5 million to 56,489,800. 

As of 2021, South Kesteven is the eighth least densely populated of the East Midlands' 35 
local authority areas, with around one person living on each football pitch-sized area of land. 

In South Kesteven there has been an increase of 29.9% in people aged 65 years and over, 
an increase of 1.3% in people aged 15 to 64 years, and an increase of 3.6% in children 
aged under 15 years. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 10 – Demographics 

56



Leisure SK Business Plan 2023/24 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

Strengths Weaknesses 

• Price point – low-cost membership 
• Passionate teams 
• Cleanliness of sites 

• Free parking at all sites 
• Swim lesson scheme 
• Good relationship with SKDC 
• Grantham location – ideal for hosting events 
• Modern gym at Bourne 
• Strong operational team 
• Good Facebook following at each site 

 
 

• Maintenance issues at all sites 
• Shortage of team members 
• Negative reputation in Deepings 

• Lack of aquatics clubs in south of district 
• Lack of investment in buildings 
• Only leisure pools in south of district 
• Social Media presence limited to Facebook 
• LeisureSK brand not well known 
• Small gym space at Stamford 

 

Opportunities Threats 

• Waiting lists for swimming lessons 
• Develop the Table Tennis Centre at Grantham to 

provide a health hub for the local community 
• Link with GP’s to deliver health programs 

• Train to retain funding 
• Set up our own training centre to deliver 

industry courses 
• Community outreach and activities for rural 

areas 
• Gymnastics and trampolining courses at 

Grantham and Bourne 
• Promote the LeisureSK brand for all health 

needs 
• Link with training providers to deliver 

management qualifications 
• Invest in energy efficiencies for long term 

savings 

• Difficulty in recruiting qualified staff in group 
exercise and exercise referral to develop 
centre programmes 

• Shortage of swim teachers stopping us 
expanding scheme 

• Cost of living crisis impacting customers and 
team 

• Cost of utilities 

• Long term maintenance issues at sites 
• LeisureSK may not be welcomed in Deepings 
• Increase in National Living Wage and cost of 

maintaining differentials 
 

 

 

Section 11 – SWOT Analysis 

57



Leisure SK Business Plan 2023/24 

 

 

 

 

 

The services offered across the company vary in line with the individual facilities but include: 

• Gym, fitness class and swimming memberships 

• Swimming (general swim, swimming lessons, school swimming and pool hire) 

• Other sports facilities hire (one-off and block bookings) 

Secondary income is generated through café and bar (in the case of Grantham Meres), 

through concessions for cafés and vending, and from minor retail (primary swimwear). 

A summary of the facilities currently available at the individual sites is as follows 

Grantham Bourne Stamford 

70 Station Gym 40 Station Gym 15 Station Gym 

2 Group 
Exercise Studios 

Group Exercise 
Studio 

Leisure Pool 
with Flume & 
Other Features 

Indoor Cycling 
Studio 

Leisure Pool 
with Flume & 
Other Features 

 

6 Court Sports 
Hall 

4 Court Sports 
Hall 

 

8 Lane 
Competition 
Pool 

Cafe 
 

Learner Pool 
  

Leisure Pool 
with Flume 

  

Outdoor grass 
pitches 

  

Table Tennis 
Centre 

  

3G Synthetic 
Pitch 

  

Meeting Rooms 
  

Café 
  

Outdoor 
tennis/netball 
courts 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Section 12 – Products and Services 

58



Leisure SK Business Plan 2023/24 

 

 

 

 

Objective – Improve the energy efficiency of centres to reduce utility costs 
 
Strategy - Work with SKDC to identify investment opportunities for energy efficiencies. 
Partner with Analytics 4 Energy to ensure all temperature setpoints are suitable. Train all 
team members on the importance of saving energy. Install PIR sensors across centres to 
reduce lighting costs. Develop an investment plan to reduce energy use. 
 

Objective – Grow Fitness Membership to 3,191 (9.5%) 
 

Strategy - Work with the sites sales teams to ensure sales processes are thorough. Follow 
the marketing plan to ensure offers are targeted at the busiest times of year. Attend local 
events to promote the centres.  
 
Objective – Grow Swim School Membership to 3,775 (10%) 

 
Strategy - Work with the sites sales teams to ensure sales processes are thorough. Follow 
the marketing plan to ensure offers are targeted at the busiest times of year. Attend local 
events to promote the centres.  
 
Objective – Launch specialist population classes across the contract - Cancer rehabilitation, 
Stroke rehabilitation, falls prevention, Cardiac rehabilitation 
 

Strategy – Work with local groups to identify which classes are needed where, ensure 
sufficient training budget is in place to train team members. Program daytime and evening 
sessions to be as inclusive as possible, promote classes through NHS partners.  
 
Objective – Deliver health services at Grantham including smoking cessation and weight 
management 
 

Strategy - Work with One You Lincolnshire to deliver health services from Grantham Meres 
Leisure Centre. Use existing links with NHS to develop sessions.  
 
Objective – Enroll all managers onto recognized management qualification 

 
Strategy - Work with HR and Lifetime Training to deliver Level 3 and Level 5 qualifications to 
all managers. 

Section 13 – Objectives and Strategy 

59



Leisure SK Business Plan 2023/24  

 

 

 

 
 
The budget for 2023-24 can be found as Appendix B. 
 
Fitness Income 
Total fitness income is budgeted to be £989,518; this is an increase of £113,917 (13%) 

compared to 2022-23 

Growth of £82,204 (28%) is budgeted for Bourne due to gym refurbishment, creation of a 

fitness studio and price increases. Growth of £17,915 (10.3%) is budgeted for Stamford and 

£3,232 (0.8%) for Grantham 

 

Swimming Income 

Total swimming income is budgeted to be £1,948,799; this is an increase of £204,633 (11.7%) 

compared to 2022-23 

Growth of £72,885 (9.3%) is budgeted for Grantham, growth of £67,340 (12.6%) for Bourne 

and growth of £64,407 (15.2%) for Stamford 

Swimming income includes a 10% price increase on casual swim and pool hire  

 

Overall Income 

Total sales are budgeted to be £3,426,881; this is an increase of £358,821 (11.7%) compared 

to 2022-23 

Growth of £106,782 (6.7%) is budgeted for Grantham, growth of £174,681 (20.4%) for Bourne 

and growth of £83,088 (13.4%) for Stamford 

 

Staff Costs 

Total staff are budgeted to be £1,779,012; this is an increase of £121,803 (7.3%) compared to 

2022-23 

National Living Wage is increasing to £10.42 (9.7%) from 1st April 2023 

 

Utility Costs 

Total utilities are budgeted to be £1,382,736; this is an increase of £660,315 (91.4%) 

compared to 2022-23 

Electricity has increased by £8,517 (1.6%) 

Gas has increased by £562,092 (303%) 

 

Profit/Loss 

Total profit is budgeted to be a loss of £515,316, this is significantly worse than the forecasted 

loss of £137,551 for 2022-23 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Section 14 – Finance 

60



Leisure SK Business Plan 2023/24 

  

 

 

 
 

The Organogram below details the relationship between the Council, the Board of Directors, 

and the onsite teams 

 

The Directors of LeisureSK Ltd have been appointed by Council and are: 

• Karen Bradford, Chief Executive of South Kesteven District Council; 

• Nicola McCoy-Brown, Director of Growth and Culture; 

• David Monkhouse, Non-Executive Director; 

The current operational management structure for LeisureSK Ltd is shown below: 
 
 

South Kesteven 
District Council

LeisureSK Ltd 
Board

Leisure Contract 
Manager

Onsite Teams

                

                     

                          

                               

                                                   

                                 

                              

         

                          

                

Section 15 – LeisureSK Structure and Responsibilities 

61



Leisure SK Business Plan 2023/24  

 

 

 

 
 
Energy Costs 
LeisureSK utility costs have dramatically increased and based on the latest ESPO framework 
forecasts, gas prices are forecast to rise by 300% from April 2023 and electricity prices are set 
to increase by 10% from October 2023 having already increased by 80% in October 2022. This 
has a huge impact on the financial position of Leisure SK.  
LeisureSK has reviewed temperatures across the leisure centres and reduced pool 
temperatures where possible. Investment is also being made in energy efficient lighting at 
Stamford Leisure Pool. 
LeisureSK is working in partnership with SKDC and Analytics for Energy to identify where 
investment can be made to reduce the consumption of gas and electricity 
 
Staffing Costs 
The National Living Wage (NLW) is due to increase by 9.7% to £10.42 per hour from April 
2023. With a large portion of the workforce paid the NLW this puts more pressure on the 
financial position of LeisureSK.  
 
Cost Of Living Crisis 
LeisureSK is facing increased costs in many areas including energy, staffing and chemicals. 
Ideally, we would increase our prices to cover these costs, however with the cost of living crisis 
we have to be careful we do not increase prices so much that our customers cannot afford to 
use the facilities. A one off increase of 9.5% was applied to swimming lessons from November 
2022 with a smaller increase planned for April 2023. Bourne membership fees were increased 
from January 2023 following investment into the gym and an increase is planned for Grantham 
from April 2023. 
LeisureSK will work with the Leisure Team from SKDC to identify how to support customers 
who cannot afford to access the facilities. 
 
Staff Recruitment and Retention 
Recruitment has been a challenge over the past 12 months across the leisure industry and 
LeisureSK has been heavily affected. In April 2022 a job evaluation scheme and pay changes 
were implemented for all employees which resulted in the first pay increases for 2 years. The 
changes meant that all job roles were assigned to a pay point which was linked to the 
responsibilities and skills/knowledge required for the roles. Some job roles were grouped to the 
same pay point.   
As well as reviewing pay LeisureSK has reviewed the benefits package it offers to all staff to 
ensure we are an attractive option to potential employees. The LeisureSK Board recently 
approved changes including increasing annual leave, introducing long service awards,  staff 
discounts as well as an occupational health plan.  
Following these changes to pay and benefits LeisureSK is in a strong position to retain and 
attract the best talent within the industry. 

Section 16 – Challenges 

62



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Research Overview/Summary Month 

Research Type Ap Ma Ju Jul Au Sept Oc No De Ja Fe Ma 

Annual Customer Satisfaction 
Survey  

           Y 

Customer Satisfaction Survey – 
Swimming lessons 

 Y           

Customer Satisfaction Survey – Gym   Y          

Customer Satisfaction Survey – 
Cleaning 

   Y         

Post Activity Questionnaire – Party       Y      Y 

Post Activity Questionnaire – 
Holiday Activities 

    Y        

Exit Questionnaire – Gym Member   Y      Y    

Competitor Analysis     Y        

Pricing Analysis     Y        

Customer Forum     Y      Y  

Customer Comments Analysis Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Staff Satisfaction Survey      Y       

Section 17 – Research Plan 

63



This page is intentionally left blank



MARKETING 
STRATEGY

2023

65

Appendix A



2
www.leisuresk.co.uk

Contents
Context. 3

Goals, Aims, Objectives 6

Our Member Profile  7

Industry Trends 8

Customer Perception Analysis 10

Resources and Budget 16

Swot Analysis - Tools, Channels and Tactics 18

Schedule of Implementation 19

66



3
www.leisuresk.co.uk

Our Target Audience is our community.
LeisureSK’s value proposition is to provide a physical activity and wellness 
network for our community, promoting healthy lifestyles, supporting well-being, 
and inspiring everyone to live a more active life.

As marketers, we must covey this core message across all generations whilst 
tailoring our marketing approach to the most prominent member segment. Of 
significance is the 35-44-year-old membership profile, a critical social media 
demographic and one with opportunities for sustainable growth.

The LeisureSK visual identity is key to our brand presentation. We have a striking 
brand palette, but we must adopt a less is more approach. We must focus 
on boosting brand understanding across our marketing and communications 
channels, online, in-venue and in-community. It’s not about being noticed, it’s 
about being understood, and our brand message is more important than ever.

We must develop our existing channels to improve brand recognition and deliver 
a clear and consistent brand message. We should also identify new ‘Above the 
line’ opportunities that enable us to reach more people and inspire them to make 
physical activity part of their everyday lives.

Context.
The Marketing Strategy workshop provided the context for a marketing strategy, 
for which a tactical plan is required to deliver the strategic change required. 

The marketing session helped clarify our goal and provide a focus for the 
strategy, identifying LeisureSK’s USPs and value propositions that need to be 
communicated effectively throughout the member journey.

67



4
www.leisuresk.co.uk

   Leisure SK’s brand message is 

‘Making your fitness 
 goals our own.’

But how do we present ourselves as the solution to a prospect’s problem 
throughout the member’s journey? Let’s break it into stages:

CUSTOMER 
JOURNEY

Contemplation  
Stage

According to the transtheoretical 
model of change, at this stage, people 
are often aware of the unhealthy 
consequences of their behaviour but 
are not yet willing to change. These 
people are looking for support whilst 
they weigh up the pros and cons, 
and as marketers, we must position 
ourselves as the expert, providing the 
‘health and well-being’ knowledge 
base that helps to inform their decision. 

Our marketing must also be inclusive 
and show through our brand positioning 
that we are here for all. Regardless of 
where you are on your fitness journey, 
what you look like, or where you live. 
Everyone is welcome at LeisureSK.

Preparation/ 
Determination

At the next stage- Preparation/
Determination; Leisure SK must 
present their USPs so we stand out in 
a competitive ‘fitness’ marketplace, 
leaving the prospect safe in the 
knowledge that LeisureSK has 
something for everyone in swimming 
classes or gym. This is the stage 
where we must be heard above the 
competition and should not be afraid 
to be more forthright in communicating 
our USPs.

68



5
www.leisuresk.co.uk

Maintenance 
Stage

Another crucial stage is the 
maintenance stage; at this stage, 
people have made progress and 
are aware of the value of change. 
However, the new routine may not yet 
be familiar and natural, and member 
retention poses a real risk. 

As marketers, we must give equal 
attention to all stages of the member 
journey. We should seek to develop 
the ‘experience’ stage of the customer 
journey; this should involve digital 
development that extends our brand 
experience and promotes social 
connections, building the Leisure SK 
community.

Action

This is the new member stage, where 
the support of LeisureSK is essential- 
consider our welcome, our first 
impression. How is our brand message 
presented in the centre? How are we 
motivating members to achieve their 
goals?

Relapse 
Stage

What is our process for reengaging 
lapsed members? How can we reignite 
their goals?

CUSTOMER 
JOURNEY

69



6
www.leisuresk.co.uk

GOALS, AIMS, 
OBJECTIVES

Goals
Our brand is visible and understood 
online, in-venue and in the community.

Aim
To improve LeisureSK’s reach and 
engagement amongst our target audience.

Objectives

1
Creation of a wellness hub

To develop the functionality of the website and app, build our knowledge 
base and enhance customer experience.

2
Establish a consistent multi-channel brand

To solidify the brand, not only in terms of visual identity but in ‘voice’ and ‘Key 
message’ across all online platforms.

3
Develop a digital customer journey

Improve e-marketing as a vital tool for member communications and 
introduce automation and journey building to maximise open/CTR rates.

4
To capture the customer experience

To establish a cyclical process to capture qualitative and quantitative 
insight into our member’s experiences and feed this insight into our outreach 
communications.

5
Improved Community Visibility

Identify marketing outlets for improved community visibility and enhanced 
brand recognition within catchment/competitor areas.

6
Improve communication of who we are and what we stand for

To identify the priority social media channels and ensure a consistent stream 
of content that boosts relevancy and authenticity and allows us to share our 
stories of real-life value-driven impact.

70



7
www.leisuresk.co.uk

OUR MEMBER 
PROFILE 

Age
Excluding 

Swim School 
Membership

Our member profile by site, where age declared.

Bourne  
Leisure Centre

Grantham Meres 
Leisure Centre

Stamford  
Leisure Centre

3-10 0 0 12 0

11-13 75 29 34 12

14-15 67 22 36 9

16-17 105 33 65 7

18-29 957 342 478 137

30-39 948 357 412 179

40-49 988 319 498 171

50-59 926 268 479 179

60-69 526 172 221 133

70-79 262 94 108 60

80-88 52 18 22 12

89+ 1 0 1 0

Total  
Members 4919 1654 2366 899

Going forward postcode level demographic data should be available so we can analyse 
member penetration at 2k, 5k, and 10k from LeisureSK venues. A key objective going 
forward will be to increase market penetration year-on-year by radial boundary.

Attention should also be given to how we can utilise our existing relationships with 
schools as a marketing outlet for cross-selling opportunities. Further data is required to 
understand the current uptake of parents/guardians of Swim school members in additional 
membership products.

Action- To review the data available and the data we capture at point of sale.

71



8
www.leisuresk.co.uk

INDUSTRY 
TRENDS
There are many industry trends at play, and careful attention should be given to those 
trends that could strengthen our marketing offer.

Trends for consideration include:

Consideration 1
‘Fitutainment’ and the gamification of exercise

Zwift became the champions of ‘Fitutainment’ when they launched their 3D ‘Tour De 
France’ in 2020. However, Fitutainment can be about something other than 3D events; it 
can simply be how we engage with customers in a hybrid manner, providing entertainment 
outside of the in-venue experience.

Supporting data: Whilst the Covid-19 pandemic can account for the surge in demand for 
the hybrid offering, the fact remains 53.5% of consumers have purchased workout products 
since March 2020 (Global Data) and the trend is set to continue.

Consideration 2
Social connection and LeisureSK’s role as not only a fitness solution provider 
but also a social solution provider

Brands that do well in this sphere have introduced leaderboards, virtual hangouts, 
competitions, and awards, with unlockable perks to engage, entertain and retain. How can 
LeisureSK make its fitness offering more interactive and community-led?

72



9
www.leisuresk.co.uk

INDUSTRY 
TRENDS

Consideration 3
Maximise the brand experience- ‘Fitness Unfiltered.’

How can LeisureSK build an emotional connection with its audience to facilitate broader 
engagement, and how can we share real-life moment- to moment-based benefits that 
boost relevancy and authenticity?

Consumers are attracted to brands that celebrate and give a voice to all identities, 
particularly those willing to participate in culturally relevant topics. LeisureSK should explore 
how it can become more representative of real-life wellness concerns and those affected 
by them through case studies and local PR.

Supporting data: Evidence from Sprout social revealed 70% of consumers felt brands 
should take a stand on social and political issues. When brands take a stand for diversity 
and inclusion, 50% are more inclined to purchase from them.

Consideration 4
The rise in Audio/Visual

TikTok and YouTube are on the rise, and podcasting is increasing in popularity. With the 
increasing popularity of TikTok and the introduction of Instagram Reels, we will see more 
raw and authentic video content than ever. Is this right for our member profile? Or are there 
more popular channels for our target audience?

Everyone’s an influencer.

Influencers continue to shape the fitness and wellness market, driving consumer demand by 
providing a sense of trust and credibility. Micro-influencers have the highest engagement 
rate, particularly those with fewer than 25,000 followers.

73



10
www.leisuresk.co.uk

CUSTOMER PERCEPTION 
ANALYSIS
Data collection needs to be a fundamental factor throughout the customer journey, and 
attention should be given to capturing customer experience, which can act as testimonials 
and support the Awareness, Engagement, Experience, Advocacy (AEEA) process.

Awareness

Engagement

Experience

Advocacy

To provide a base metric of brand impression, Leisure SK asked its existing members the 
following eight questions via online survey.

1.  What colours do you associate with the LeisureSK brand?

2.  What words or phrases would you use to describe LeisureSK?

3.  Did you know LeisureSK manages leisure centres in Bourne, Stamford and Grantham?

4.  How do you prefer to receive information from us?

5.  What content interests you the most?

6.   What would you like to see LeisureSK delivering more online, in-venue and in the 
community?

7.  Why do you use LeisureSK?

8.  What LeisureSK venue do you use?

74



11
www.leisuresk.co.uk

SURVEY 
RESULTS

Survey Participants

The survey was circulated to the entire member base of 3115 members, of which 9.5% 
responded. 

Of the 293 responses, members indicated they used the following venues: 

40% 41% 19%

BOURNE  
LEISURE CENTRE

GRANTHAM MERE’S  
LEISURE CENTRE

STAMFORD 
LEISURE CENTRE

37% associated the colour purple with the LeisureSK brand, and only 12% the colour pink. 
Dark blue was the second most dominant colour at 28%

37% 28% 22% 19%

Brand recognition across the venues is high, with 98% of respondents aware that LeisureSK 
managed centres in Bourne, Stamford and Grantham.

75



12
www.leisuresk.co.uk

SURVEY 
RESULTS
An email was the most preferred contact preference, with 70% of respondents indicating 
this was their preferred channel, followed by the app at 22%.

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

Contact Preference

When asked what content is of most interest 62% of respondents indicated articles 
supporting the industry trend for unfiltered fitness content that discusses real-life wellness 
concerns. Photos followed at 18%.

0.00% 100%

Articles

Photos

Videos

Fun Facts

Content Preference

76



13
www.leisuresk.co.uk

SURVEY 
RESULTS
When asked what they would like to see LeisureSK delivering more online, in-venue and in 
the community 45% of respondents sought expert advice, followed by 22% who indicated 
on-demand workouts.

When asked why they are members of LeisureSK, value for money scored the highest at 
40%, with friends and family scoring the lowest at just 4%.

0.00%

20.00%

10.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

EXPERT 
ADVICE

COMPETITIONS FITNESS 
CHALLENGES

ON-DEMAND 
WORKOUTS

Would like to see more…

0.00%

20.00%

10.00%

30.00%

40.00%

ACTIVITIES  
ON OFFER

FRIENDS & 
FAMILY

CONVENIENCE VALUE FOR 
MONEY

Reason for membership

77



14
www.leisuresk.co.uk

SURVEY 
RESULTS
When asked what words they would use to describe LeisureSK, 15% of respondents said 
‘Friendly’, and 7% said ‘Fun.’

Professional

78



15
www.leisuresk.co.uk

IN 
SUMMARY
The feedback gathered supports our objectives in the following ways. 

Our members have requested more expert advice and a desire for articles. By creating a 
wellness hub and developing the functionality of the website and app, we will be able to 
provide easy access to health and well-being advice and notify our members effectively. 

Content created can also be repurposed on social media and assists in our objective to 
create a consistent stream of relevant and authentic content supportive of the trend for 
unfiltered fitness.

The survey results also suggested a strong preference for email communications, our email 
distribution is sporadic, and we must create a consistent approach to engaging with our 
members. 

Whilst our members displayed good brand recognition and understanding. We know that 
we can improve our brand presence. We need to solidify our brand throughout the member 
journey and identify activities to bolster social connections, supporting our ambition to 
engage, entertain and retain our member base.

Lastly, our members clearly appreciate the value-for-money solution we provide for their 
fitness needs; they consider us friendly, welcoming, and supportive. Going forward, we must 
capture this content and use this to qualitative feedback to drive advocacy and generate 
social proof of our ‘community’ service.

79



16
www.leisuresk.co.uk

RESOURCES AND 
BUDGET
LeisureSK employs the services of a sports marketing consultancy Cock-a-doodle-doo 
on a retained basis to provide support across all marketing and PR services; this includes 
marketing strategy, campaign planning, e-mail marketing and social media. 

In 2022, we took social media in-house and marketing services focused on developing the 
LeisureSK app and creating and delivering quarterly marketing campaigns. 

The more strategic focus was positive in terms of generating leads and increasing traffic 
to the app. In the first 30 days of launch, the app registered 7970 downloads and 37,905 
module hits. The app currently has 10,516 downloads. 

However, social media growth has slowed. Instagram is the most affected, with a gain 
of just 9% over the last six months compared to 26% growth in the previous six months. 
Facebook similarly reported an improvement of 3% compared to 5% over the same period 
last year. Consistency is the influencing factor, and reach and impressions are down 51% 
from where they were in January 2022

The plan to allow us to reach new audiences is for the social media campaigns outlined in 
the implementation schedule (page 19) to be managed by Cock-a-doodle-doo. We will 
also use Cockadoodledoo’s expertise to deliver social media training to the membership 
team in Q1 to supplement campaign activity with weekly site-based content, providing 
relatable and authentic content aiding member retention.

80



17
www.leisuresk.co.uk

RESOURCES AND 
BUDGET

Supporting the pivot to well-being

To promote active well-being, as detailed in Sport England’s Future of Public Leisure Report, 
a priority for Cockadoodledoo marketing services in 2023 is to review www.leisuresk.co.uk 
and ensure it mirrors the growth achieved with the app in 2022.

The website currently attracts an average of 40k page views per month, an average  
of 4k membership page views per month, and an average viewing time site-wide of  
1.50 seconds. 

Whilst the viewing time is above the national average of 54 seconds, our bounce rate is 
high at 60% (the industry average recommends below 50%), suggesting a high volume  
of users aren’t visiting other pages on the website. This can be improved with a free- 
flowing menu structure that encourages ease of transition and enhanced interaction  
with e-mail marketing. We also need to consider customer experience and how we can 
boost interactivity.

The website is also focused purely on Leisure. To achieve our mission to provide a physical 
activity and wellness network for our community, we need to review our online presence 
and ensure our commitment to well-being is communicated clearly and creatively.

We are confident no extra resources are required. However we may need to boost the 
contracted hours for external marketing support during peak project delivery periods. 

81

https://www.sportengland.org/news/public-sector-leisure-set-transition-active-wellbeing-focus
http://www.leisuresk.co.uk/


18
www.leisuresk.co.uk

SWOT ANALYSIS - TOOLS, CHANNELS AND TACTICS
An analysis of our strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats was completed by the management team in November 2022.

Strengths Weaknesses Opportunities Threats

• Breadth of service offer

• Competitive prices

• Community ethos and our 
relationships with members

• Local PR

• Strategic Campaigns

• Inviting, welcoming and family 
orientated atmosphere 

• Helpful and multiskilled staff

• Clean open Centre’s

• Our team-friendly, 
knowledgeable, familiar faces

• Established facilities well 
known in the community

• Ability to offer a wide range 
of services from traditional 
fitness offering to well-being 
walks and social spaces

• App is eye-catching and easy 
to use

• Free parking-easily 
accessible

• Strong team developing

• Marketing throughout the member journey

• Qualitative feedback capture

• Inconsistent email marketing

• Inconsistent social media communications

• Local external marketing through banners, 
leaflets, and posters

• Branding

• Strong link with SKDC restricting some 
access to potential marketing avenues 
other providers may not have

• Lack of customer understanding of LSK 
brand values and objectives

• Limited scope to expand pool timetables 
in places

• Service recovery process lacking in places 
e.g., cancellations

• Induction process and follow up-
relationship building

• Too much focus on new members

• Difficulty measuring customer 
satisfaction- need to increase  
customer loyalty

• Are our user groups considered too ‘clicky’ 
so new members find it hard to belong?

• Influencer and Relationship Building

• Community awareness and advertising

• On-site experience

• Use of data analytics and insight

• Demand for Expert Advice 

• Demand for Articles- storytelling and 
authenticity

• Strong link with SKDC allowing preferential 
access to potential marketing avenues other 
providers may not have

• Links with healthcare providers across  
the district

• Links and partnership working through CSP 
with other leisure operators

• Focused promotion in local free magazines 
to build brand awareness 

• Opportunity to approach/engage with non-
user groups-potential long-term loyalty

• Wider range of activities for the community 
to engage with whole families

• Chance to use existing customers  
as advocates

• Private pools/facilities may struggle more 
due to utility costs

• Competitor awareness

• Low customer feedback

• Capability to develop website

• Increasing price of marketing

• Being left behind due to a lack of 
marketing and social media presence

• Rising cost of living and perception of 
leisure as a non-essential luxury

• Utility pricing-inability to control costs-
restrict plans

• Low expectation of service from 
public- nonusers

• Lack of perceived value for 
memberships

82



19
www.leisuresk.co.uk

SCHEDULE OF IMPLEMENTATION
January February March April May June

Web Dev

National  
Campaigns

Dry January

Blue Monday (16th)

Time to talk day (2nd)

Random Acts of Kindness 
Day (17th)

International Women’s 
Day (8th)

World Sleep Day (18th)

Nutrition and Hydration 
Week (14-20th)

Walk to Workday (1st)

World Health Day (7th)

Stress Awareness Month

Mental Health Awareness 
Week (9-15th)

Learning at work week 
(16-22nd)

National Walking Month

Bike Week (6th-12th)

World Well-being Week  
(26-30th)

BNF Healthy Eating Week 
(13th-17th)

Drowning Prevention Week 
(18th-25th)

National School Sport Week 
(20-26th)

LeisureSK  
Campaigns

Exercise your options  
(Gym, Swim, GEX)

Summer ready campaign 
TBC

Expert  
Advice- App

How exercise can improve 
sleep quality

How exercise can reduce 
stress

How exercise can  
support mental and 
physical well-being

Water Safety Advice

Monthly Member 
Challenge

Most Active Members Most Active Members Most Active Members Run 26 miles in 26 days 
(London Marathon)

Walk 1000 miles across all 
walking groups

Most Active Members

Most Active Members Most Active Members

Key Messages Nothing to pay until 1st 
February

Swim School
Free swimming in holidays 

Join for an Easter Egg 
until April

Half Term Crash Courses Team Time- The team’s 
favourite workouts

Nothing to pay until 1st July

Free 1- week pass to 
support Dry January

Half Term Crash Courses Swim School-Easter  
Egg Hunt

Free Friend Friday Water Safety Advice

Newsletter w/c 23rd w/c 20th w/c 20th w/c 24th w/c 22nd w/c 19th

83



20
www.leisuresk.co.uk

SCHEDULE OF IMPLEMENTATION
July August September October November December

Web Dev

National  
Campaigns

Cycle to Workday (4th)

Women’s World Cup

World Breastfeeding 
Awareness Week (1-7th)

National Fitness Day

Know Your Numbers Week 
(5-11th)

World Alzheimers Day (21st)

Zero Waste Week  
(19-25th)

Stoptober 

Go Sober for October 

National Cholesterol Month 

National Work Life week  
10-14th

Black Friday 

Children in Need

‘Movember’

Men’s Health Awareness 
Month

Christmas Jumper 
Day (8th)

LeisureSK  
Campaigns

Summer ready 
campaign TBC

National Fitness Day week – 
Access all areas

Black Friday TBC January campaign 
to launch Boxing Day

Expert  
Advice- App

Best exercises pre and 
post pregnancy

Exercise and Alzheimer’s- and 
how regular exercise can re-
duce the risk

The best exercises to lower your 
cholesteral

Why everyone joins a 
gym in January

Monthly Member 
Challenge

Most Active Members Most Active Members Most Active Members Most Active Members Most Active Members Most Active Members

12 Days of Christmas  
‘Fitmas’ Challenge

Key Messages Swim School Free 
Swimming in the holidays

Back to school/Back to 
swim school

On site recycling Halloween Crash Courses (Aqua 
Quidditch special)

Winter Well-being 
Walks promotions

Schools get set for 
summer swim passes/ 
free family swims

Free blood pressure/health 
checks

Free Friend Friday Macmillan Coffee Morning Free Friend Friday Men’s MOT’s  
(Men’s Health Week)

Newsletter w/c 23rd w/c 20th w/c 20th w/c 24th w/c 22nd w/c 19th

84



www.leisuresk.co.uk

85



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

87

Appendix B
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Companies Committee: Work Programme 2022/23 

No  Item Meeting 
Date 

Lead Officer Requirements Notes  
(including reporting 
timeframes) 

      
1. EMBC Update 24 January 

2023 
Emma Whittaker 
Assistant Director 
of Planning 

• Review of the East Midlands 
Building Consultancy Business 
Plan 

Six Monthly update 

2. EnvironmentSK Ltd 24 January 
2023 

Claire Moses • Update  

3. LeisureSK Ltd  24 January 
2023 

LeisureSK Ltd 
Board 

• Appointment of Board Directors 
(vacancies following resignation 
of Cllr Cooke and Cllr Adam 
Stokes) 

• Business Plan  

 

4. Gravitas Housing Ltd 14 March 
2023* TBC 

Richard Wyles  • Final accounts  

5. SK Ltd Companies  14 March 
2023 

 • Review of Business Plan 
template. 

 

 

 Items to be allocated  
 

Item  Lead Officer   

EMBC update on Business Plan within 6 months 
from 26.04.22 

Emma Whittaker -
Assistant Director 
Planning  

Date TBC every six months 
 

EnvironmentSK Ltd update  
 

EnvironmentSK Ltd 
Board 

Date TBC every six months 

LeisureSK update on figures contained within the 
Business Plan – Sports Leisure Consultants to 
attend meeting to discuss figures referenced in 
Business Plan 

LeisureSK Ltd Board   Date TBC 

 

105

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2022
	4 Updates from the previous meeting
	5 East Midlands Building Consultancy (EMBC) update
	6 EnvironmentSK Ltd
	8 LeisureSK Ltd Business Plan and Appointment of Directors
	LSK Accounts to 31 March 2022
	LeisureSK Ltd Business Plan 2324
	Business Plan Appendix A LeisureSK_Marketing Strategy 2023
	Context.
	Goals, Aims, Objectives
	Our Member
Profile 
	Industry Trends
	Customer Perception Analysis
	Resources and Budget
	Swot Analysis - Tools, Channels and Tactics
	Schedule of Implementation


	EXEMPT Business Plan Appendix B 2023-24 Budget

	9 Work Programme 2022-23

